
4 March 2020

NOTICE OF MEETING

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
will meet on

Tuesday, 10 March 2020
beginning at

6:15 pm
in 

Rooms 16 and 17, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 
9YN

TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chairman)
Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Rob Rushton
Councillor Margaret Atkinson
Councillor Ray Dean
Councillor Adam Manning
Councillor Wayne Irish
Councillor Adrian Trace
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne
Councillor Bruce Tennent

CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader

Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298 
Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk

Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 
023 8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Head of Performance and Governancer

____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in 

other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above.

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and 
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Apologies    

3. Declarations of Interest    

4. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 8) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2020.

5. Asset Management Strategy    (Pages 9 - 26)

6. External Audit Progress    

7. Internal Audit Charter 2020/21    (Pages 27 - 48)

8. Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21    (Pages 49 - 62)

9. Verbal Updates from Members Representing Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) / Procurement Executive Group (PEG)/Housing Group    

10. Action List    

11. Cabinet Forward Plan    (Pages 63 - 68)

12. A&R Work Programme    (Pages 69 - 70)

13. Exempt Business     

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 in respect of the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it 
is/they are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
The Schedule 12A categories have been amended and are now subject to the 
public interest test, in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  This 
came into effect on 1 March 2006.
 
It is considered that the following items are exempt from disclosure and that the 
public interest in not disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.

EXEMPT ITEM 

2



14. Counter Fraud Report    (Pages 71 - 84)

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday, 23 June 2020 at 6:15 pm

in the Rooms 16 and 17, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 
9YN

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 11 February 2020  (6:15 pm – 7:35 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Holes (Chairman); Councillors Atkinson, Bourne, Dean, Irish, 
Trace, Tyson-Payne and Tennent

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Rushton and 
Manning

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

166. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

167. MINUTES

RESOLVED – 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

168. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

169. THE POINT AND THE BERRY THEATRE PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The Arts and Culture Manager presented her report to the Committee. 
Additional information was provided verbally to the Committee which 
included that the theatres were on target to meet the 60% occupancy rate 
(nationally set at 51%).  42k tickets had been sold during the period April 
2019 to January 2020 compared to 39k tickets for the same period the 
previous year.

Councillors thanked the Arts and Culture Manager for presenting a well-
received report. 

RESOLVED – 

That the Committee noted the report. 

5

Agenda Item 4



2

170. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY MONITORING STATEMENT (QTR 3)

Jo Cassar, Head of Internal Audit, advised that work to complete the 
Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 was progressing well and introduced the report 
covering the internal audit monitoring for the third quarter.  The planned 
time and actual time were closely monitored to ensure, where possible, 
any variation is kept to a minimum. Furthermore, the implementation of 
audit recommendations were closely monitored by the Head of Internal 
Audit. There were currently no matters that require escalation to the 
Committee.

RESOLVED – 

That the Audit and Resources Committee considered the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for the third quarter of 2019/20.

171. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Janet Dawson (Lead Partner EY)  set the national context for External 
Audit.  There had been national debate over the provision of local 
government audits, because of changes over several years, increased 
regulatory pressure, the amount of work required to support opinions, level 
of challenge specialist skills to look at increasingly complex areas and 
pressure around timetables (publish by 31 July).  

Janet recently wrote to S151 Officers and Chairs of Audit Committees to 
set out the situation.  Councillor Holes would circulate the email to all 
Councillors. 

Simon Mathers (EY Manager) presented the EY audit Plan for 2020/21. 
The Plan was to complete the audit by 31 July; the task plan and 
resources were all designed.  The risk to not achieving this completion 
date would be from unforeseen events. 

Councillors would be informed promptly of any potential delays. 

RESOLVED – 

That the External Audit Plan 2019/20 be approved.

172. VERBAL UPDATES FROM MEMBERS REPRESENTING STRATEGIC 
RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP (SRMG) / PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE 
GROUP (PEG)/HOUSING GROUP

(a) Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG)

6



3

Councillor Tyson-Payne reported that she had raised the issue over 
responsibility for trees on the boundary of the Borough and whether this 
was included in Tree Policy. The Policy and Performance Committee 
would ensure this matter was included when approving the Policy. 
Councillor Tyson-Payne confirmed that Nitrate neutrality was on the 
Corporate Risk Register. The SRMG were due to review the Risk 
Registers of three service areas but due to mis-communication the authors 
were not in attendance. The group had several queries, so it was agreed 
to defer the item to the next meeting. 

(b) Procurement Executive Group (PEG)

Councillor Atkinson and Councillor Irish advised that the meeting had been 
postponed until March 2020. The Corporate Director advised the 
Councillors that the Procurement Officer had commenced her role with the 
Council.

(c) Housing Group

Councillors Atkinson, Irish, Tyson-Payne and Dean advised that a meeting 
had taken place and provided a summary of the meeting which included 
reviewing the arrangements for Leah Gardens and a well-received 
presentation on the Aspect Limited Liability Partnership.  It was agreed 
that the slides of the presentation would be circulated to Committee 
members for information only and for members to list any questions that 
arise. 

173. CABINET FORWARD PLAN

The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions.
 
It was AGREED -
 
That the current Forward Plan be noted.

174. A&R WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered their Work Programme to the end of March 
2021.

It was confirmed that the next meeting would take place on the 10 March 
2020. Members asked for this to be circulated in Calendars and that 
Forward Plan be added to the work programme for 10 March 2020 
meeting.

It was AGREED – 

That the Work Programme be noted. 

7



4

175. EXEMPT BUSINESS

RESOLVED -

(1) That, in pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following item of business on the grounds that it is 
likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; 
and

(2) That, in pursuance of the public interest test, the public 
interest in disclosing the information contained in the 
following item of business was outweighed by the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption.

176. UPDATE ON STAFFING MATTERS 2019/20

RESOLVED – 

Due to unforeseen circumstances, the HR Manager was unable to 
attend the meeting to present the report. It was agreed that the report 
be postponed to a later meeting.

8



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 10 March 2020 

CABINET

 Thursday, 19 March 2020

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2020-2025

Report of the Lead Asset Manager 

Recommendation to Audit and Resources

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee considers the Asset 
Management Strategy 2020-2025 and makes any recommendations for amendments 
to Cabinet for their consideration.

Recommendation to Cabinet

It is recommended that Cabinet approve the Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025

Summary
The Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025 sets out the key strategic aims for the 
Council’s approach to asset management and explains in more detail how this will be 
achieved through the use, maintenance and management of the Council’s property assets 
(land and buildings) over the lifetime of this strategy. 

Focus for Scrutiny

To consider the Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025 and make any recommendations 
to Cabinet for their consideration prior to Cabinet decision.

Statutory Powers

Section 123(2A) Local Government Act 1972

9

Agenda Item 5



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. The Asset Management Strategy supports the following Corporate Plan 
objectives:

 Regeneration – to support the environment, health and wellbeing, housing 
delivery and the economy through regeneration

 Economy – to improve skills and employment, infrastructure and to 
reinvigorate town and local centres

 Housing Delivery – to increase provision and a more diverse mix of housing.
 The Strategy underpins all the Council’s objectives through generating 

income.

2. The key objectives of the Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025 are to:

 Maximise regeneration and growth through effective procurement and linking 
public sector requirements with regeneration opportunities.

 Embed a culture of innovation that maximises best use of appropriate 
technologies that support new ways of working and protects the environment; 
utilising available financing to support implementation and meet the objectives 
of the Climate Change and Environment Strategy and Action Plan.

 Drive efficiency through the management of our land and property assets, 
ensuring they provide the right space, in the right place and on the best terms. 
This also includes income generation and overall social value from the 
property portfolio through proactive asset management.

 Manage our property portfolio effectively using best practice, project and 
property management methodologies, adopting clear policies and action plans 
to meet our strategic goals; developing clear reporting processes to involve 
and inform Councillors, Service Managers and Project Sponsors in decision 
making.

 Deliver our services in a customer focused way, working with local suppliers 
or Small to Medium Enterprises (SME) where possible, who share our values 
and behaviours.

 Keep our properties safe, dry and warm through the implementation of a well-
managed, rigorous compliance regime; repairs and renewals programme with 
clear maintenance plans and efficient facilities management. 

Introduction

3. It has been recognised that the current adopted Asset Management Strategy 
requires updating to support and guide officers and Councillors in managing 
the Council’s property assets portfolio. The purpose of this Asset Management 
Strategy 2020-2025 is to build on the successful approach and track record 
Eastleigh Borough Council has in making the best use of our land and 
property assets to generate significant revenue to protect front-line services; 
maximising opportunities to regenerate key areas of the Borough so that the 
communities share in associated environmental, economic and social benefits. 
The Council’s proactive property acquisition programme will continue to make 
strategic interventions to support Council priorities and help to ensure the 

10



Eastleigh Borough Council

Council is not dependent on Council Tax income to fund services as part of 
the wider financial strategy.

Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025

4. The Asset Management Strategy (Appendix 1) sets out the key strategic aims 
for the Council’s approach to asset management and explains in more detail 
how this will be achieved and how success will be measured. It will help the 
Council develop action plans, agree priorities and make decisions, to meet its 
longer-term objectives.

Financial Implications

5. The Council’s capital and revenue budget agreed for 2020/21 supports the 
activity and income levels suggested by this Strategy. These finances are 
actively kept under review through Treasury Management and the Council’s 
financial monitoring processes. Resourcing to pursue this Strategy will be 
reviewed annually as part of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Planning 
process. 

6. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as the 
activities set out in the Asset Management Strategy will either be carried out 
through existing resources and funding or require separate business cases 
and Cabinet approval before funding is allocated.

Risk Assessment

7. As with any longer term plan there is a degree of risk and uncertainty arising 
from both internal and external factors which could have a significant impact 
on the delivery of the Asset Management Strategy. A risk management plan is 
managed for the existing portfolio; in addition, risks associated with any 
portfolio changes are assessed individually and mitigated where appropriate.  

Equality and Diversity Implications

8. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as it relates to 
eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or fostering good 
relations between different people. An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has 
not been carried out for this report because while there are some equalities 
impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA at this stage. However, 
equalities issues will be considered as part of the delivery of the Asset 
Management Strategy and included within individual Business Cases and 
management of the property asset portfolio.  In particular the Council will 
ensure reasonable adjustments and adaptations are made to buildings and 
other assets to ensure assets are as accessible to disabled people as 
possible.

11



Eastleigh Borough Council

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

9. The Asset Management Strategy is designed to reduce CO2 outputs from our 
property assets and contribute to the Climate Change and Environment 
Strategy by improving energy efficiency and sustainability. 

The strategy actively supports mitigation and/or adaptation to climate change 
through the approaches to:

 Procurement: supply chain and lifecycle environmental impacts

 Resilience to heatwaves, flooding and severe weather events

 Energy consumption

 Encouraging residents and businesses to change behaviours e.g. 
shifting to more sustainable modes of transport

Conclusion

10. This Strategy supports delivery of Council services and helps deliver 
substantial regeneration benefits for the Borough.  It also includes significant 
parts of the Council’s ambition to address climate change.

11. It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee considers the 
Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025 and makes any recommendations for 
amendments to Cabinet for their consideration.

12. It is recommended that Cabinet approve the Asset Management Strategy.

LIZ SUATT
LEAD ASSET MANAGER

Date: 26 February 2020
Contact Officer: Liz Suatt
Tel No: 020 8068 3856
e-mail: liz.suatt@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 3

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Asset Management Strategy 2013-18

12



Asset 
Management 
Strategy 2020-
2025

Corporate 
Strategy

13



2

Contents

Section 1
1.1Introduction
1.2Asset Management Strategy
1.3Our Land and Property
1.4Our Money

Section 2

2.1 Our Corporate Landlord Approach
2.2 Measuring our Performance
2.3 Challenging our Assets
2.4 Maintaining our Assets
2.5 Working with Partners
2.6 Engaging with our Communities
2.7 Our Forward Plan

   

14



3

Section 1

1.1 Introduction

Our ambition is to be one of the leading Public Sector Organisations for 
development, property and asset management with a proactive approach to 
driving the best from our asset base and service delivery.

For many years we have demonstrated this ambition and innovation in making 
the best use of our land and property assets to generate significant revenue to 
protect front-line services; maximising opportunities to regenerate key areas 
of the Borough for the benefit of our communities so that they share in the 
associated environmental, economic and social benefits.

Progress made on delivery so far:

 Delivered a successful Acquisitions Strategy to grow the commercial 
property portfolio generating a significant annual net surplus to support 
frontline services. 

 Supported delivery of Housing Strategy through our Strategic Housing 
Partnership with local registered providers, Radian and VIVID and 
Fareham Borough Council

 Supported delivery of Health and Wellbeing Strategy eg developed 
Places Leisure, a new modern leisure Centre at Fleming Park, 
Eastleigh and community centre and surgery at Lowford Centre, 
Bursledon

 Worked proactively in partnership with public and private sectors to 
deliver development opportunities eg.Travel lodge and M&S buildings

 Implemented a range of renewable energy installations
 Supporting delivery of Public sector hub in Eastleigh town centre 

through co-location of public services in Council owned property.

1.2 Asset Management Strategy

The Asset Management Strategy provides an overview of our land and 
property assets, ensuring focus is maintained on our main priorities for 
managing, maintaining and developing our assets over the next five years. 
The strategy informs policies enabling us to develop action plans, agree 
priorities and make decisions to meet our longer-term objectives.

This strategy is a cornerstone of our financial and service planning and 
supports delivery of the Medium Term Financial Plan whilst ensuring 
compliance with our Capital and Investment Strategies.

The Strategy will be reviewed and updated annually to ensure our land and 
property assets fully support the Council’s Corporate Plan, by contributing to 

15



4

our key objectives for property asset management in accordance with our 
emerging Asset Management Policy:

 Maximise regeneration and growth through effective procurement and 
linking public sector requirements with regeneration opportunities.

 Embed a culture of innovation that maximises best use of appropriate 
technologies that support new ways of working and protects the 
environment; utilising available financing to support implementation 
and meet the objectives of the Climate Change and Environment 
Strategy and Action Plan.

 Drive efficiency through the management of our land and property 
assets, ensuring they provide the right space, in the right place and on 
the best terms. This also includes income generation and overall social 
value from the property portfolio through proactive asset management.

 Manage our property portfolio effectively using best practice, project 
and property management methodologies, adopting clear policies and 
action plans to meet our strategic goals; developing clear reporting 
processes to involve and inform Councillors, Service Managers and 
Project Sponsors in decision making.

 Deliver our services in a customer focused way, working with local 
suppliers or Small to Medium Enterprises (SME) where possible, who 
share our values and behaviours.

 Keep our properties safe, dry and warm through the implementation of 
a well-managed, rigorous compliance regime; repairs and renewals 
programme with clear maintenance plans and efficient facilities 
management. 

  
1.3 Our Land and Property

We own a substantial and varied land and property portfolio predominantly 
located within the Borough. It includes commercial property, leisure facilities, 
depots, car parks, public conveniences and assets leased to community 
organisations.
  
Our land and property portfolio generates an annual net surplus of around £12 
million for 2020-21 with a book value of circa £220 million (as at 31st March 
2019). This is the amount that is included within the authority’s accounts and, 
whilst this is not necessarily the exact amount that we would receive if we sold 
all our assets, it demonstrates what a considerable resource our land and 
buildings are, and why they need to be carefully managed.

As the way we deliver services changes, our assets need to adapt to support 
the Council as it moves forward. We will continue to invest in our assets to 
ensure we provide services fit for the future and to maximise benefit to the 
people and businesses in the borough.

In support of maximising value for money, in relation to the maintenance and 
day-to-day running of our buildings, contributory processes are embedded 
within the Corporate Landlord. These processes ensure that capital works are 

16



5

prioritised appropriately through our Repairs and Renewals Programme, 
based on evidence from building condition surveys, and in alignment with 
operational priorities of those services in occupation. Additionally, the Asset 
Challenge process ensures that the future of those buildings not providing 
best value are reviewed appropriately before financial decisions are made on 
them.

1.4 Our Money

This strategy supports delivery of the Medium Term Financial Plan whilst 
ensuring compliance with our Capital and Investment Strategies. It is 
designed to ensure we prioritise where and how we spend the money to 
maximise the benefit to our communities and meet the challenges of the next 
five years in terms of recession proofing and managing in a Brexit landscape.

We have ridden the financial challenges of the last decade and remain 
committed to supporting the Borough’s economic growth; encouraging job 
creation and investment through our dynamic rolling capital Community 
Investment and Housing Delivery Programmes. It is important to note that our 
capital investment provides leadership and attracts further inward investment. 
This helps the local economy and community to grow and thrive so that every 
pound invested by the authority generates additional social value (economic, 
environmental, health and wellbeing) benefits.

We actively support a circular economy and sustainability by working with 
local businesses or small to medium enterprises within Hampshire or the 
Solent Local Enterprise Partnership area where possible.

Section 2
2.1 Our Corporate Landlord Approach

The Leader of the Council is the portfolio holder for Property and the 
Corporate Director for Support Services (Chief Financial Officer) is 
accountable for the Asset Management Service. This direct involvement at 
Councillor and Corporate Management level reflects the importance and 
recognition of making the best use of our physical resources. 

The Lead Asset Manager is responsible for the Asset Management Service 
with a professional, ambitious and dynamic property team, working in 
partnership with our communities, businesses, building occupiers, 
landowners, suppliers and partners to optimise asset performance and 
income in the delivery of our property services and solutions. The way we 
manage our assets is important. We need to ensure that our land and 
buildings are managed as corporate resources, the right stakeholders are 
involved, and decisions are made in the context of the council’s priorities and 
objectives. 

17



6

We operate a Corporate Landlord Approach where the ownership of an asset 
and the responsibility for its management and maintenance is transferred 
from service areas into the corporate centre. The service area then becomes 
a corporate tenant and their priority is to plan and deliver their service to the 
best of their ability. 

Our Asset Management Service are responsible for the Corporate Landlord 
function to ensure all services are adequately accommodated and the 
associated land and property assets are managed and maintained. The 
Corporate Landlord’s responsibility extends further to the acquisition, 
development and disposal of land and buildings. The Corporate Landlord is 
responsible for asset planning, review, feasibility and options appraisal 
accounting for the needs of all service areas, but most importantly, making 
decisions based on overall corporate priorities.

Our Corporate land and property are managed and maintained to ensure they 
are Statutory and Industry (RICS) Complaint, adopting RICS best practice 
guidelines to meet our ambition of being exemplary in our land and property 
stewardship. Our experienced inhouse specialist teams with support from 
external suppliers where necessary, always strive to ensure our property 
portfolio is effective, sustainable and energy efficient. Our Strategic Property 
Approach is shown in Figure 1 below. 

Figure 1. Strategic Property Approach

There is a robust governance structure in place providing direction and 
transparency of the management of our property portfolio and further 
assurance that money is spent in the right place.

18



7

2.2 Measuring our Performance

To manage our assets effectively and efficiently we monitor how they are 
performing. These performance measures covering utilisation, cost and 
income are reported quarterly as part of the Asset Management Service Plan 
monitoring and feed into the Asset Challenge process.

2.3 Challenging our Assets

Our developing Asset Challenge process (set out in Appendix 3) will become 
an embedded process, which means that our asset portfolio is reviewed on a 
continuous rolling programme as part of the Asset and Business Planning 
process as shown below in Figure 2. 

19



8

This ensures that only those assets that are needed are retained. The 
ultimate aims of Asset Challenge are to reduce costs, identify assets that 
should be retained for use and/or invested in, identify those that are surplus to 
requirements and therefore can be disposed of. To do this, each asset is 
assessed using a step-by-step challenge process, ensuring that every asset 
has been fundamentally tested against a common set of criteria.

2.4 Maintaining our Assets

Our four key aims for Building Maintenance management are:
1. To ensure our Buildings are safe and secure for the people who use them 
2. To allocate funding to projects that will achieve the maximum positive 
impact
3. To achieve an efficient balance between planned and reactive maintenance 
work
4. Achieving maximum efficiencies in the way we procure building 
maintenance work

We identify our priorities by conducting a rolling programme of condition 
surveys which aims to understand maintenance requirements over a period of 
ten years, with aspirations to complete lifecycle condition surveys on selected 
assets to cover a period of 25 years. We have an agreed five year Repairs 
and Renewal Programme which enables a better informed decision-making 

20



9

approach, maximising efficiencies by planning over a longer time horizon, 
instead of reacting to emergencies as they happen. 

2.5 Working with Partners

We are active members of the Hampshire One Public Estate programme, 
working closely with other public sector organisations across the Borough to 
explore opportunities to reduce premises costs and make assets work better 
for our communities and customers. This includes supporting development of 
community or health and social care hub solutions for our residents and 
businesses with a focus on Eastleigh and Hedge End town centres during the 
length of this strategy.

We will continue to explore opportunities for partnership working with both 
public and private sector bodies and agencies to ensure successful delivery of 
the Asset Management Strategy. 

2.6 Engaging with our Communities

Our policy, and part of the delivery of the localism agenda, is that wherever 
practical, buildings or land used to support community uses are transferred to 
the local Community, Parish or Town Council governance to enable local 
control and determination.

Local people are often best placed to manage community facilities in their 
area. They already make extensive use of these assets and their local 
knowledge and hands-on management often results in lower overheads and 
better value-for-money. Community organisations also use volunteers and 
take great pride in their local area. Managing these facilities can help to 
empower local communities and can bring opportunities for greater 
independence and financial sustainability. We are fully committed to using our 
assets to form long-term partnerships with suitable community organisations, 
to create stronger, more cohesive and more sustainable communities.

2.7 Our Forward Plan

This document outlines the key strategic objectives and focus for our land and 
buildings over the next five years. Our Asset Management Action Plan further 
describes the specific activities to achieve these objectives, categorised under 
three headings of: 

Regeneration – to support the environment, health and wellbeing, 
housing delivery and the economy through regeneration

 Enhance sustainability, reduce water consumption, cut waste and 
improve energy efficiency in our new developments and 
refit/refurbishment projects

21



10

 Delivery of development projects including the Former Post Office site; 
marketing of The Green office development in Eastleigh and the 
regeneration of the former Budgens site in Hedge End

 Ongoing Strategic Acquisition Programme to support future 
placemaking and regeneration in Eastleigh town centre and Local 
District Centres

 Review of our property assets to support delivery of the Climate 
Change and Environment Strategy; Economy Strategy; Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and emerging Cultural Strategy. 

 Review Direct Services accommodation to assess need, efficiency, 
sustainability and develop options for alternative service 
provision/relocation

 Review Countryside Services accommodation, efficiency, sustainability 
and develop options for improved service delivery with Service 
Manager

 One Public Estate – continued partnership working to share assets and 
explore options for improved service delivery across Public Sector 
bodies in Hampshire

 Continuous improvement in efficiency of delivery of services, including 
procurement of services, works and products. 

Economy – to improve skills and employment, infrastructure and to 
reinvigorate town and local centres.

 Review and asset planning of Wessex House Business Centre to 
ensure it continues to meet market demand, support small businesses 
and attract inward investment.

Housing Delivery – to increase provision and a more diverse mix of 
housing

 Ongoing housing delivery through Aspect, joint venture partnership
 Delivery of additional housing on three town centre sites through 

partnership working with registered provider, Vivid
 Review of Council owned land and buildings to support housing 

delivery 
 Support master planning for a sustainable community at One Horton 

Heath

The Asset Management Action Plan (Appendix 2) will be managed and 
updated quarterly to report on progress and achievements. This means that 
the document will change to reflect achievement of actions and capture new 
priorities and initiatives as they are identified.

22



Appendix 2 Asset Challenge Process

23



24



Corporate Objective Action  Measure Timescale

Prosperous Borough  Improve efficiencies through proactive 

property management 

Review leases (including service 

charges) and rent reviews due in 

2020/21. 

2020/21

Prosperous Borough  Improve efficiency of statutory 

compliance management  

Develop new statutory compliance plan 

for all council properties.

End 2020

Prosperous Borough  Enable long term savings through 

planned Repairs and Renewals 

Programme

Implement Repairs and Renewals 

Programme and achieve milestones

Delivery over next 5 years

Greener Borough Identify opportunities to reduce fossil 

fuel energy consumption

Complete environmental review of 

Council owned property assets

Spring 2021

Housing Identify sites within Council property 

portfolio where feasible to support 

delivery of housing strategy

Complete review of existing property 

portfolio and detailed analysis of 

selected properties

September 2020

Regeneration and Housing Provide specialist market, design and 

occupier knowledge to identify and 

enhance regeneration opportunities 

within Eastleigh to ensure optimum 

financial and social returns

Detailed input into Working Group and 

supporting documents

2020/21

Regeneration and Housing Provide specialist market, design and 

occupier knowledge to ensure optimum 

financial and social returns from the 

former Post office site

Detailed input into project and achieve 

project milestones

2020/21

Regeneration and Housing Identify and seek to acquire property to 

enable regeneration in Eastleigh and 

District centres. 

Submit offers for identified properties 

and manage the process of purchase 

from concept to owned and managed 

property

Ongoing

Economy Ensure that modern and dynamic 

working environments are available 

within the Borough for start up and 

small local companies 

Prepare and implement a 5 year plan 

for Wessex House 

Summer 2020

Regeneration Provide new Grade A office space at 

'The Green'  development site enabling 

the provision of more jobs within the 

Borough

Constant review and implementation of 

the marketing strategy and analysis of 

opportunities

Ongoing

Housing Enabling the provision of 49 housing 

units through project management of 

the Romsey Road development

Project milestones met Development Completion 

2022

Regeneration Enhance Hedge End town centre 

through development opportunities on 

Council owned property assets

Complete review of developemnt 

strategy for Hedge End town centre

Summer 2020

Health and Wellbeing Provide specialist property advice to 

Service Manager enabling the 

development of a Strategic Asset Plan 

for the Country Parks

Review of accommodation and 

occupational requirements

December 2020

Health and Wellbeing Provide specialist property advice to the 

Service Manager enabling the 

development of a Strategic Asset Plan 

for Direct Services

Review of accommodation and 

occupational requirements

Summer 2020

Health and Wellbeing, Housing and 

Environment

Provide specialist property advice to 

enable social, financial and 

environmental returns to be optimised 

on new Council development or 

refurbishment projects

Develop and provide Modern Method 

of Construction (MMC) analysis and an 

Employers Specification

Spring 2021

Health and Wellbeing Provide greater efficiency in the 

Community Asset Transfer (CAT) 

process

Review the existing CAT policy(in 

consultaion with Stakeholders) to 

streamline and improve process

Spring 2021

Health and Wellbeing Promote One Public Estate ‐ explore 

opportunities for partnership working 

with Healthcare Commissioner (CCG) 

and Healthcare Providers in Council 

properties

Obtain healthcare providers 

accommodation requirements to 

enable review of potential 

opportunities for co‐location or 

partnership working

Spring 2021

ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020‐21

25



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Tuesday 10 March 2020

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21
 

Report of the Head of Internal Audit 

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Internal Audit Charter 2020/21 be approved.

Summary

 With effect from 1 April 2013 all public sector bodies were required to adopt 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). The Standards 
were revised April 2017.

 The Internal Audit Charter defines the Internal Audit’s, purpose, authority 
and responsibility in line with the Standards. 

 This report presents the Internal Audit Charter for 2020/21 and Quality and 
Assurance Improvement Plan 2020/21. 

Statutory Powers
S.151 Local Government Act 1972
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

Strategic Implications 

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s 
risk management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, 
work effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  Internal Audit helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes.

Introduction 

2. With effect from 1 April 2013 all public sector bodies were required to adopt 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). These standards, 
which are based on the mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), are 
intended to promote further improvement in the professionalism, quality, 
consistency and effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector. 

27

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

3. The Standards were revised from 1 April 2017 to incorporate new and revised 
international standards and consequent amendments to the additional public 
sector requirements and interpretations. 

4. Within the Standards there is a requirement for an Internal Audit Charter to be 
approved annually by the Audit and Resources Committee.  This Committee 
approved the Internal Audit Charter 2019/20 on 30 July 2019. 

Internal Audit Charter

5. Appendix 1 provides the Audit and Resources Committee with the Internal 
Audit Charter for 2020/21.  

6. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be 
formally defined in an Internal Audit Charter, consistent with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. The Head of Internal 
Audit must review the Internal Audit Charter and present it to Management 
Team and the Audit and Resources Committee for approval annually.

7. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the 
organisation, including the nature of the Head of Internal Audit’s functional 
reporting relationship with the Audit and Resources Committee, authorises 
access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the 
performance of engagements, and defines the scope of internal audit 
activities. Final approval of the Internal Audit Charter resides with the Audit 
and Resources Committee. 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

8. The Charter details the arrangements for maintaining a quality assurance and 
improvement programme (section 10). The Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) 2020/21 can be found at Appendix 2. The 
Committee is asked to note the contents of the QAIP. An evaluation of the 
Internal Audit Team’s conformance with the Standards has been completed 
during quarter 4 of 2019/20. The results will be included in the Head of 
Internal Audit’s Annual Opinion 2019/20 to be presented to this Committee in 
June 2020. 

Financial Implications

9. As outlined in this report, the Internal Audit Charter will define Internal Audit’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility and therefore will ensure that the work of 
the team is clear and controlled by a robust set of principles.  There will be no 
change to the budget as a result of this report.

Risk Assessment

10.The Internal Audit Charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (the Standards). By not having an Internal Audit Charter the 
Internal Audit Section will fail to meet the requirements of the Standards. 

28



Eastleigh Borough Council

Equality and Diversity Implications

11.The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. Therefore, it is 
considered that the Equality Duty does not need to be addressed and an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

12.There are no Climate Change and Environmental implications as a result of 
this report. It is a report dealing with Internal Audit procedural matters only. 

Conclusion

13. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards an Internal 
Audit Charter 2020/21 has been drafted and it is recommended that it is 
approved by this Committee.

JOANNE CASSAR
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

Date: 7 February 2020
Contact Officer: Joanne Cassar 
Tel No: 023 8068 8015
e-mail: joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Two
*Report No Internal Audit Charter 2020/21 & QAIP 2020/21

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

* The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017

 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Borough Council

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

2020/21

Version Date Author

16/17 – 2nd review 12th July 2016 Joanne Cassar, Chief 
Internal Auditor 

17/18 – 3rd review 18th July 2017 Joanne Cassar, Lead Audit 
Specialist (Chief Internal 
Auditor)

18/19 – 4th review 10th July 2018 Joanne Casar, Internal Audit 
Lead Specialist (Chief 
Internal Auditor) 

19/20 – 5th review 12th June 2019 Joanne Cassar, Head of 
Internal Audit 

20/21 – 6th review 10th  March 2020 Joanne Cassar, Head of 
Internal Audit 

31



Eastleigh Borough Council 
Internal Audit Charter 2020/21

1. Standards for Professional Practice
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 (the Standards, updated 

2017) provides a consolidated approach to audit standards across the 
whole of the public sector providing continuity, sound corporate 
governance and transparency.

1.2 The Standards encompass the mandatory elements of the Institute of 
Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) 
and follows:
 Definition of Internal Auditing
 Code of Ethics
 Core Principles 

1.3 The Standards require all internal audit activities to implement and retain 
an ‘Internal Audit Charter’.  The Internal Audit Charter describes the 
purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity. 

1.4 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the Charter and 
presenting it to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Management Team and 
Audit & Resources Committee annually for review and approval.

2. Purpose & Mission
2.1 The purpose of Eastleigh Borough Council’s Internal Audit Team is to 

provide independent assurance that the Council’s risk management, 
governance, and control processes are efficient, compliant, work 
effectively and support the ambitions of the Council.

2.2 The mission of Internal Audit is to enhance and protect organisational 
value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight. 

2.3 Internal Audit will:

 Demonstrate integrity;
 Demonstrate competence and due professional care;
 Be objective and free from undue influence (independent);
 Align with strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation ;
 Demonstrate quality and continuous improvement;
 Communicate effectively;
 Provide risk- based assurance;
 Be insightful, proactive, and future focused; 
 Promote a culture of anti-fraud; and
 Promote organisational improvement.

2.4 Internal Audit helps the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes. 

32



3. Authority 
3.1 The requirement for an Internal Audit function is contained in Regulation 6 

of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which requires the Council 
to:

“undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting 
records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper 
practices in relation to internal control”.

3.2 The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid 
down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (updated 2017). The 
Standards applies to all internal audit service providers, whether in house, 
shared services or outsourced.

3.3 The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit within Eastleigh Borough Council lies with the Chief 
Financial Officer (S151 Officer). 

3.4 The Head of Internal Audit, who is independent of any operational 
responsibility, is responsible for effectively managing the internal audit 
activity in accordance with the ‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of 
Ethics’ and ‘the Standards’.

3.5 Eastleigh Borough Council’s Constitution, Part 4, contains the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules. Internal Audit’s responsibilities are separately 
recorded in section 4 (paragraphs 4.10-4.16).

4. Organisation 
4.1 The Head of Internal Audit will report functionally to the Audit & Resources 

Committee and organisationally (day to day) to the Corporate Director 
Support Services (Chief Financial Officer (S151 officer)).

4.2 Internal audit is independent in its planning and operation and as such the 
Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to, and can communicate 
and interact directly with the;

 Chief Executive;
 Monitoring Officer & Corporate Directors;
 Councillors including specifically the Chair of the Audit & Resources 

Committee (including private meetings without management 
present);

 All levels of management; and
 other council employees as necessary.

4.3 The Internal Audit activity, with strict accountability for confidentiality and 
safeguarding records and information, is authorised to:

33



 Have full, free and unrestricted access to all of Eastleigh Borough 
Council’s functions, records, property, and personnel pertinent to 
carrying out any engagement.

 Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine 
scopes of work, apply techniques required to accomplish audit 
objectives, and issue reports. 

 Require, and receive, any necessary explanations concerning any 
matter under examination;

 Require any employee of the Council to produce any Council 
property or asset under their control.

5. Independence and Objectivity 
5.1 All Internal Auditors will conform to the Chartered Institute of Internal 

Auditors’ (CIIA) Code of Ethics. Where members of the Internal Audit team 
have attained membership with other professional bodies such as: the 
ACCA, AAT or CIPFA, those officers must also comply with their relevant 
bodies’ ethical requirements. In addition to this, all Internal Auditors will 
have regard to the Standards of Public Life’s “Seven Principles of Public 
Life”.

5.2 The Head of Internal Audit will ensure that the Internal Audit function 
remains free from all conditions that threaten the ability of internal auditors 
to carry out their responsibilities in an unbiased manner, including matters 
of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing and report 
content. If the Head of Internal Audit determines that independence or 
objectivity may be impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the 
impairment will be disclosed to appropriate parties.

5.3 Internal Auditors must maintain an unbiased attitude that allows them to 
perform engagements objectively and in such a manner that they believe 
in their work product, that no quality compromises are made, and that they 
do no subordinate their judgement on audit matters to others.  

5.4 Internal Auditors will not have any direct operational responsibilities or 
authority over any of the activities audited. Accordingly, Internal Auditors 
will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install systems, 
prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair their 
judgment including:

 Assessing specific operations for which they had responsibility for 
within the previous  year

 Performing any operational duties for Eastleigh Borough Council
 Initiating or approving transactions external to the Internal Audit 

function 
 Directing the activities of any Eastleigh Borough Council employee 

not employed by the Internal Audit function; except to the extent that 
such employees have been appropriately assigned to auditing teams 
or to otherwise assist internal auditors. 

34



5.5 Where the Head of Internal Audit has or is expected to have roles and/or 
responsibilities that fall outside of internal auditing, safeguards will be 
established to limit impairments to independence or objectivity.

5.6 Internal auditors will:

 Disclose any impairment of independence or objectivity, in fact or 
appearance, to appropriate parties.

 Exhibit professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and 
communicating information about the activity or process being 
examined.

 Make balanced assessments of all available and relevant facts and 
circumstances.

 Take necessary precautions to avoid being unduly influenced by 
their own interests or by others in forming judgments.

5.7 The Head of Internal Audit will confirm to the Audit & Resources 
Committee, at least annually, the organisational independence of the 
internal audit function. The Head of Internal Audit will disclose to the Audit 
& Resources Committee any interference and related implications in 
determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work and/or 
communicating results. 

6. Internal Audit Resources
6.1 For the audit team to fulfil their responsibilities, the team must be 

appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications, skills 
and experience. Resources must be effectively deployed to achieve the 
approved risk based plan. The mix of available knowledge, skills and other 
competencies will be considered once the risk based plan is drafted to 
ensure they are sufficient to deliver the plan.

6.2 It is the responsibility of the Head of Internal Audit to report concerns over 
a lack of resources to the Chief Financial Officer and to the Audit & 
Resources Committee.

6.3 If necessary, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chair of the Audit & 
Resources Committee will agree the level of additional and or specialist 
resources. Following which, a recommendation will be made to Cabinet 
seeking approval. 

6.4 Employment of staff will be in compliance with the Council’s Human 
Resources policies.

6.5 External resources will be procured in line with the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. There is a further specific 
requirement under the Standards that approval be sought from the Audit & 
Resources Committee to engage in any significant additional consultancy 
services not already included within the audit plan.

35



6.6 The Head of Internal Audit will hold a professional qualification (CMIIA, 
CIPFA or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. Each job role within the 
internal audit structure will detail skills and competencies within the 
approved job description and person specification. In line with Council 
policy and the Standards, each member of the team will be assessed 
against these predetermined competencies and annual objectives through 
performance monitoring. Auditors are also required to maintain a record of 
their continual professional development in line with their professional 
body. 

7. Scope of Internal Audit activities 
7.1 The scope of internal audit activities encompasses, but is not limited to, 

objective examinations of evidence for the purpose of providing 
independent assessments to the Audit & Resources Committee, 
Management Team, and other stakeholders on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control processes for 
Eastleigh Borough Council. 

7.2 Internal audit assessments include evaluating whether:

 Risks relating to the achievement of Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
strategic objectives are appropriately identified and managed.

 The actions of Eastleigh Borough Council are in compliance with its 
policies, procedures, and applicable laws, regulations, and 
governance standards.

 The results of operations or programs are consistent with established 
goals and objectives.

 Operations or programs are being carried out effectively and 
efficiently.

 Established processes and systems enable compliance with the 
policies, procedures, laws, and regulations that could significantly 
impact Eastleigh Borough Council.

 Information and the means used to identify, measure, analyse, 
classify, and report such information are reliable and have integrity.

 Resources and assets are acquired economically, used efficiently, 
and protected adequately.

7.3 The Head of Internal Audit will report periodically to senior management 
and the Audit & Resources Committee regarding:

 The internal audit function’s purpose, authority, and responsibility.
 The internal audit function’s plan and performance relative to its plan.
 The internal audit function’s conformance with The IIA’s Code of 

Ethics and Standards, and action plans to address any significant 
conformance issues.

 Significant risk exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, 
governance issues, and other matters requiring the attention of, or 
requested by, the Audit & Resources Committee. 

 Results of audit engagements or other activities.

36



 Resource requirements.
 Any response to risk by management that may be unacceptable.

7.4 The Head of Internal Audit also coordinates activities, where possible, and 
considers relying upon the work of other internal and external assurance 
and consulting service providers as needed. The internal audit function 
may perform advisory activities, the nature and scope of which will be 
agreed with the accountable officer, provided the internal audit function 
does not assume management responsibility.

7.5 Opportunities for improving the efficiency of governance, risk 
management, and control processes may be identified during 
engagements. These opportunities will be communicated to the 
appropriate level of management.

7.6 A range of internal audit services are provided (annex 1) to form the Head 
of Internal Audit’s annual opinion. The approach is determined by the 
Head of Internal Audit and will depend on the level of assurance required, 
the significance of the objectives under review relative to the Council’s 
success, the risks inherent in the achievement of objectives and the level 
of confidence required that controls are well designed and operating as 
intended. 

8. Fraud 
Internal Audit has a role in the prevention, detection and investigation of 
fraud. Internal Auditors will plan and evaluate their work so as to have a 
reasonable expectation of detecting fraud and identifying any significant 
weaknesses in internal controls. Internal Audit will provide independent 
assurance on the effectiveness of the processes put in place by 
management to manage the risk of fraud.

8.1 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for ensuring Internal Audit 
planned work includes time for pro-active counter fraud activities through 
the development of an Annual Fraud Action Plan.  Progress will be 
reported annually to the Audit & Resources Committee through the 
Corporate Fraud Report. 

9. Responsibility 
Head of Internal Audit
9.1 The Head of Internal Audit has the responsibility to:

 Submit, at least annually, to Management Team and the Audit & 
Resources Committee a risk-based internal audit plan for review and 
approval and an Internal Audit Charter

 Communicate to Management Team and the Audit & Resources 
Committee the impact of resource limitations on the internal audit 
plan.

 Review and adjust the internal audit plan, as necessary, in response 
to changes in Eastleigh Borough Council’s business, risks, 
operations, programmes, systems, and controls.

37



 Communicate to Management Team and the Audit & Resources 
Committee any significant interim changes to the internal audit plan 
for review and approval.

 Communicate to Management Team and the Audit & Resources 
Committee quarterly on internal audit performance relative to its plan 
and other matters.

 Produce annually an Annual Internal Audit Opinion and report 
providing a conclusion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control that can be used by the Council to inform its governance 
statement. 

 Ensure each engagement of the internal audit plan is executed, 
including the establishment of objectives and scope, the assignment 
of appropriate and adequately supervised resources, the 
documentation of work programs and testing results, and the 
communication of engagement results with applicable conclusions 
and recommendations to appropriate parties.

 Follow up on engagement findings and corrective actions, and report 
quarterly to Management Team and the Audit & Resources 
Committee any corrective actions (high risk recommendations) not 
effectively implemented.

 Ensure the principles of integrity, objectivity, confidentiality, and 
competency are applied and upheld.

 Ensure the internal audit function collectively possesses or obtains 
the knowledge, skills, and other competencies needed to meet the 
requirements of the internal audit charter.

 Ensure trends and emerging issues that could impact the Council are 
considered and communicated to Management Team and the Audit 
& Resources Committee as appropriate.

 Ensure emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing 
are considered.

 Establish and ensure adherence to policies and procedures 
designed to guide the internal audit function.

 Ensure adherence to the Council’s relevant policies and procedures, 
unless such policies and procedures conflict with the internal audit 
charter. Any such conflicts will be resolved or otherwise 
communicated to Management Team and the Audit & Resources 
Committee.

 Promote an anti-fraud and anti-money laundering culture.

Management Team
9.2 As those responsible for the leadership and direction of the Council it is 

imperative that the Management Team are engaged in:

 Approving the Internal Audit Charter annually
 Approving the risk-based internal audit plan
 Receiving communications from the Head of Internal Audit on the 

internal audit’s performance relative to its plan and other matters.

38



 Making appropriate enquiries of the Head of Internal Audit to 
determine whether there are inappropriate scope and resource 
limitations

 Receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the 
quality assurance and improvement programme, including areas of 
non-conformance.

Audit & Resources Committee
9.3 Organisational independence is effectively achieved when the Head of 

Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit & Resources Committee. 
Such reporting will include:

 Approving the Internal Audit Charter annually
 Approving the risk-based Internal Audit Plan
 Receiving communications from the Head of Internal Audit on the 

internal audit’s performance relative to its plan and other matters.
 Making appropriate enquiries of management and the Head of 

Internal Audit to determine whether there are inappropriate scope 
and resource limitations

 Receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the 
quality assurance and improvement programme, including areas of 
non-conformance.

 Approval of significant consulting services not already included in the 
audit plan, prior to the acceptance of the engagement.

 Approval of the application of audit days included in the internal audit 
plan for member requested reviews/scrutiny is utilised, prior to the 
acceptance of the engagement. 

10. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
10.1 The internal audit function will maintain a quality assurance and 

improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit 
activity. The program will include an evaluation of the internal audit 
function’s conformance with the Standards and an evaluation of whether 
internal auditors apply The IIA’s Code of Ethics. The program will also 
assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit team/activity 
and identify opportunities for improvement.

10.2 The Head of Internal Audit will communicate to senior management and 
the Audit & Resources Committee on the internal audit function’s quality 
assurance and improvement programme, including results of internal 
assessments (both ongoing and periodic) and external assessments 
conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor or assessment team. This arrangement and scope must be 
agreed with the Chief Financial Officer, Audit & Resources Committee and 
the Independent Assessor. This requirement is currently met through the 
sharing of best practice between the Hampshire & Isle of Wight Audit 
Managers. 

39



11. Review of the Internal Audit Charter

11.1 This Charter will be reviewed annually (minimum) by the Head of Internal 
Audit and presented to Management Team and the Audit & Resources 
Committee for approval.

40



Annex 1
Eastleigh Borough Councils’ Internal Audit function can provide:

 Assurance reviews – where risks and controls associated with the 
mitigation of that risk are assessed and tested to determine any residual 
risk to the achievement of objectives. Recommendations will be made 
where appropriate and an audit opinion will be provided. Further details 
of the grading of recommendations and categories of opinion can be 
found in Annex 2

 Compliance reviews – ensuring compliance with legislation and 
standards either as part of assurance assignments or separate limited 
review

 IT Audit reviews – specialist review of the IT control environment 
(specialist resource procured)

 Consultancy engagements – where advice and support can be 
provided either informally through discussion or formally through 
providing reports. It should be noted that it is not appropriate for an 
Internal Auditor to become involved in establishing or implementing 
controls or assuming any operational responsibility. Any advisory work 
performed must not prejudice the scope, objectivity and quality of future 
audit work. 

 System development reviews – providing assurance during the 
development of new systems that adequate controls have been 
developed; system testing and training is sufficient, data integrity is not 
impaired,  system documentation is sufficient and that the needs of the 
user have been met

 Process improvement – identifying process improvements through 
either adhoc reviews or through planned audit engagements. 

 Fraud & irregularity reviews – Internal Audit may provide specialist 
skills to lead or assist in fraud or irregularity investigations. Internal 
Audit’s role in this is outlined in the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy. 

 Project management reviews & support – post implementation 
reviews as requested by Management Team performed in conjunction 
with the Project Management Office

 Contract management reviews - sign off of contract final accounts. 

 Value for money – review of arrangements eg Partnerships, to ensure 
value for money is being achieved 

 Governance support -  (inputting in the drafting of the Annual 
Governance Statement 

41



Annex 2

Internal Audit – Assurance Methodology

Opinion
1. For each internal audit assignment, we arrive at a conclusion that assesses 

the audit assurance in one of four categories. These will arise from:
 Our assessment of the controls that are in place and;
 Our assessment of compliance with these controls.

Level Control Assessment Compliance Assessment
Substantial There are robust controls in 

place. 
There is compliance with 
controls.

Adequate There are opportunities to 
improve controls. 

There is non-compliance with 
some of the controls.

Limited Significant weaknesses in 
controls exist.

There is a significant level of 
non-compliance with 
controls.

Nil There are no controls in 
place.

There is no compliance with 
controls.

2. Audit objectives are established for each assignment. Each objective is 
assessed and the results are used to form an overall opinion. 

Recommendations
3. Recommendations are graded according to the potential inherent risk 

presented. This is the risk prior to any mitigation and is designed to assist 
management with prioritising implementation as follows:

Priority Explanation

1
(Critical risk)

Significant control weaknesses which require immediate 
action.  For example, a breach of law.

2
(High risk)

There is a key control missing, not working or being 
adhered. This could lead to a risk of material 
inaccuracy/loss. 

3
(Medium Risk)

There is a key control missing, not working or being 
adhered. This could lead to a risk of material 
inaccuracy/loss. 

4
(Low Risk)

There is a weakness or opportunity for improvement 
although this does not expose the Council to any 
significant risk.

42



Eastleigh Borough Council 

INTERNAL AUDIT

Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

2020/21

Version Date Author

1 July 2016

Approved by Audit & Resources 
Committee 12 July 2016

Joanne Cassar, Chief Internal 
Auditor 

2 March 2020

Approved by Audit & Resources 
Committee 10 March 2020

Joanne Cassar, Head of 
Internal Audit 

43



Internal Audit Quality and Assurance Improvement Programme 2

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

Introduction

1. The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Global Practice Guide “Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QIAP)” defines it as:

“An ongoing and periodic assessment of the entire spectrum of audit and 
consulting work performed by the internal audit activity. These ongoing and 
periodic assessments are composed of rigorous, comprehensive processes; 
continuous supervision and testing of internal audit and consulting work; and 
periodic validations of confirmation with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the 
Code of Ethics and the Standards. This also includes ongoing measurement 
and analysis of performance metrics (eg internal audit plan accomplishment, 
recommendations accepted and customer satisfaction). If the assessments’ 
result indicates areas for improvement by the internal audit activity the Chief 
Internal Auditor will implement the improvements through the QAIP.”

2. The Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) is a requirement of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) April 2013.The Standards were 
revised from 1 April 2017 to incorporate new and revised international standards and 
consequent amendments to the additional public sector requirements and 
interpretations. 

3. It is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders (the Audit 
& Resources Committee, Management Team, Senior Leadership Team, Functional 
and Operational Managers) that Internal Audit:

 Conforms with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the 
Standards;

 Has an adequate Internal Audit Charter, goals, objectives, policies and 
procedures;

 Contributes to the organisation’s governance, risk management and control 
processes;

 Has complete coverage of the audit universe;

 Complies with applicable laws, regulations and other standards that the internal 
audit activity may be subject to;

 Has identified the risks affecting the operation of the internal audit activity itself;

 Has an effective continuous improvement activity in place and adopts best 
practice and;

 Adds value to improve the Council’s operations and contributes to the attainment 
of the Council’s objectives. 

44



Internal Audit Quality and Assurance Improvement Programme 3

4. The Head of Internal Audit (HIA) is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers 
all types of Internal Audit activities, including consultancy. The QAIP includes both 
internal and external assessments. Internal assessments are both ongoing and 
periodical and external assessments will be undertaken at least once every five 
years, in order to meet statutory requirements. The QAIP is reviewed on an annual 
basis. 

Ongoing monitoring of performance 

5. Ongoing monitoring is an integral part of the day-to-day supervision, review and 
measurement of the internal audit activity. Ongoing monitoring is incorporated into 
the routine policies and practice used to manage the internal audit activity and uses 
processes, tools and information considered necessary to evaluate conformance with 
the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards.

6. Ongoing reviews provide assurance that the processes in place are working 
effectively to ensure that quality is delivered on an audit by audit basis. This includes 
continuous monitoring of: 

a) Audit engagements 

 The HIA or Senior Internal Auditor (SIA) will review and agree 
audit risk assessments, audit engagement plans, testing plans, 
testing summaries and draft and final report 

 The HIA or SIA will supervise audit engagements 

 Audit engagements will be recorded using standard working 
practices (including working papers, file control checklist and sign 
off processes)

 The HIA or SIA will provide monthly 1:1s with individual auditors to 
discuss progress with audit, initial findings, time management

 The HIA will ensure monthly team meetings take place to discuss 
current workloads and initiatives 

 Monthly 1:1s between HIA & Corporate Director Support Services 
- Chief Financial Officer (CFO).

b) Progress against the Audit Plan

 The HIA will report quarterly to the Audit & Resources Committee 
on progress made against the Audit Plan and the progress of the 
implementation of internal and external audit recommendations 

 The HIA will meet with the Chair of Audit & Resources Committee 
prior to each Audit & Resources Committee 

c) Discuss performance of internal audit activity

 Regular 1:1s between HIA & CFO

45



Internal Audit Quality and Assurance Improvement Programme 4

 The HIA will meet with the Chair of Audit & Resources Committee 
prior to each Audit & Resources Committee 

d) Customer survey/questionnaire

 Annual questionnaire circulated to Unit Heads/Operational 
Managers requesting feedback 

e) Annual review of Audit Charter

 Review of Audit Charter by HIA annually

 Presented to Audit & Resources Committee annually for approval 

f) Audit & Resources Committee – briefings/training

 Adhoc training sessions on audit methodology and/or changes to 
audit standards/legislation 

g) People Performance Framework/Pay Review

 Quarterly performance reviews with Auditors 

 Annual Pay reviews

Periodic self-assessments

7. Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit’s 
Charter, the Standards, Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the quality 
of the audit work and supervision, policies and procedures supporting the internal 
audit activity, the added value to the organisation and the achievement of 
performance standards. A full assessment was carried out during quarter 4 of 
2019/20 and the results will be communicated the Audit & Resources Committee via 
the Annual Opinion 2019/20. 

External Assessment 

8. The External Assessment will consist of a broad scope of coverage that includes the 
following:

 Conformance with the Standards, Definition of Internal Auditing, the 
Code of Ethics, and Internal Audit’s Charter, plans, policies, 
procedures, practices and any applicable legislative and regulatory 
requirements 

 Expectations of Internal Audit as expressed by the Audit Committee 
and Management Team

 Integration of the Internal Audit activity into the governance process

 The mix of staff knowledge, experiences and disciplines including use 
of tools and techniques and process improvements

46



Internal Audit Quality and Assurance Improvement Programme 5

 A determination as to whether Internal Audit adds value and improves 
the Council’s operations.

9. An external assessment will be conducted once every five years by a qualified 
independent assessor from outside the Council. The assessment will be in the form 
of a full external assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external 
validation. The form of the external audit assessment and the qualification and 
independence of the external assessor will be discussed and agreed with the Audit & 
Resources Committee and the Corporate Director Support Services (CFO). It is 
planned that an external assessment will be carried out during 2020/21.

10. Assessment scale: The scale to assess the level of conformance of the internal audit 
activity with the standards is as follows:

Generally conforms/ Partially conforms/ Does not Conform 

Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

11. The Head of Internal Audit will communicate the results of the QIAP to Management 
Team and the Audit & Resources Committee in the Annual Report. 

12. The outcome of Internal and External Assessments will be reported to Management 
Team and the Audit & Resources Committee. The report will be accompanied by a 
written improvement plan in response to significant findings and recommendations 
contained in the report. The Head of Internal Audit will implement appropriate follow 
up actions to ensure that recommendations made in the reports and improvement 
plans developed are implemented in a reasonable timeframe. Progress against any 
improvement plans will be reported in the Annual Report. 

13. The Head of Internal Audit may state that the audit activity conforms with the 
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing only if the 
results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement programme support this 
statement. When non-conformance with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code 
of Ethics or the Standards impacts the overall scope or operation of the internal audit 
activity, the Head of Internal Audit must disclose the non-conformance and the 
impact to Management Team and the Audit and Resources Committee. More 
significant deviations must be considered for inclusion in the Annual Governance 
Statement.

47



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Tuesday 10 March 2020

STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21

Report of the Corporate Director Support Services (Chief Financial 
Officer) & Head of Internal Audit

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 be approved.

Summary 
 This report presents the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 (Appendix 1). 

The Strategic Internal Audit Plan has been prepared on behalf of the Chief 
Financial Officer in recognition of her responsibilities under S.151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, and in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017.

Statutory Powers

S151 Local Government Act 1972
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

Strategic Implications 

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s 
risk management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, 
work effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  

Introduction
2. Appendix 1 of this report presents to Councillors the Strategic Internal Audit 

Plan for 2020/21. 

3. It is expected that for 2020/21 the team will consist of the Internal Head of 
Internal Audit (0.75 full time equivalent (FTE)), Senior Internal Auditor (1.0 
FTE), Internal Auditor (1.0 FTE) and an Internal Audit Apprentice (1.0 FTE).  
The Senior Internal Auditor and Internal Audit Apprentice have been appointed 
on 2 year fixed term contracts until July 2021 and October 2021 respectively. 

Finance/Risk Implications
4. There are no financial implications arising from this report. The report is 

intended to highlight the audit coverage over the next year. The work 
performed by the Internal Audit Section provides management with a good 

49

Agenda Item 8



degree of assurance that their risks, identified by the reviews, are adequately 
controlled or identifies where they may require strengthening.

Equality & Diversity Implications
5. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality 

Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

6. There are no Climate Change and Environmental implications as a result of 
this report.  It is a report dealing with Internal Audit procedural matters only. 

Conclusion
7. The Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 has been prepared in accordance 

with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, following a comprehensive 
need and risk assessment and consultation.

8. Members of this Committee will continue to receive an update on performance 
against the Annual Plan by way of Quarterly Monitoring Statements. 

JOANNE CASSAR
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Date: 19 February 2020
Contact Officer: Joanne Cassar 
Tel No: 023 8068 8015
e-mail: joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: One
*Report No Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 – SECTION 100D

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based, and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report.

 Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
 Internal Audit Charter 2020/21

50



INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGIC PLAN 

2020/21

Contents
Introduction Page 2
Conformance with Standards Page 2 
Council Risk & the Audit Universe Page 2
Internal Audit Resources Page 3
Developing the Internal Audit Plan Page 3
Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 5
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Page 6

Appendices:
Appendix One – Risk Based Strategy Page 10
Appendix Two – Audit Opinion & Gradings (Assurance Methodology) Page 11

Head of Internal Audit – Joanne Cassar MIIA, MAAT, ACFS

51



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

2

Introduction
1. The role of Internal Audit is best summarised through its definition within the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as:

“an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes”. 

2. The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 
management processes, control systems, accounting records and 
governance arrangements. Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the 
Council that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively. The 
Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening 
of the control environment and therefore contribute to the achievement of the 
organisation’s objectives. 

3. The aim of Internal Audit’s work programme is to provide independent and 
objective assurance to management, in relation to the business, activities, 
systems or processes under review that: 

 the framework of internal control, risk management and governance is 
appropriate and operating effectively; and 

 risk to the achievement of the Council’s objectives is identified, assessed 
and managed to a defined acceptable level. 

4. The Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the Head of 
Internal Audit can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit resources to 
provide a clear statement of assurance on risk management, internal control 
and governance arrangements.  

5. A copy of the assurance methodology can be found in appendix two.

Conformance with Standards
6. The Strategic Internal Audit Plan has been prepared in recognition of the 

responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer under S.151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 and in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (the 
Standards).

Council Risk & the Audit Universe
7. The Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to develop and maintain a 

risk-based strategy for delivering the internal audit service. The risk strategy 
methodology can be found in Appendix 1. 

8. The Council has 9 service plans to support the Corporate Strategy and the 10 
corporate objectives. Supporting the 9 service plans are 9 Risk Registers 
which will be more closely aligned to corporate objectives. The current and 

52



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

3

future Risk Registers are fundamental to the development of the Internal 
Audit Plan. The Head of Internal Audit will monitor the risk registers closely 
over the course of the year to ensure the plan remains agile to the rapidly 
changing landscape.

9. The Audit Universe identifies the main auditable areas within the Council. 
This is kept under regular review and updated to reflect new ways of working.  
Each auditable area is risk assessed annually as part of the planning process 
and a risk factor is applied to as summarised below (see appendix 1 for risk 
strategy methodology). The audit cycle is indicative and will be dependent on 
resource capacity. 

 High – audit in alternate years (biennially).
 Medium – audit on a cyclical basis every 3-5 years.
 Low – audit on a non-cyclical basis based on a continued assessment of 

risk.
Internal Audit Resources 

10.For 2020/21 the team will consist of the Internal Head of Internal Audit (0.75 
full time equivalent (FTE)), Senior Internal Auditor (1.0 FTE), Internal Auditor 
(1.0 FTE) and an Internal Audit Apprentice (1.0 FTE).  The Senior Internal 
Auditor has been appointed on a 2 year fixed term contract until July 2021. 

Developing the Internal Audit Plan
11.To ensure that the Audit Plan is aligned to the Corporate Strategy, Service 

Plans, and Risk Management Framework and that it continues to add value, 
consultation took place with the Senior Leadership Team. 

12.Based on the conversations with key stakeholders, review of key corporate 
documents and risk registers, along with the Team’s understanding of the 
organisation a three year Strategic Internal Audit Plan and an Annual Internal 
Audit Plan for the coming year have been developed.

13.During the year dialogue with key stakeholders will continue to ensure that 
the plan reflects the needs of the Council. The three year Strategic Plan is 
reviewed and updated as necessary each year and presented to 
Management Team and the Audit & Resources Committee. 

14.The Council is reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance 
and through the delivery of our plan we will not, and do not seek to cover all 
risks and processes within the organisation. 

15. In compiling the Plan the following was considered:

 Any audit not completed as part of the Annual Plan for 2019/20 has been 
reassessed for risk and incorporated into this 3 year Strategic Internal 
Audit Plan.

 A review of the Audit Universe was carried out and the following changes 
were made:

53



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

4

New reviews 
o Climate and Environment Strategy

 From 2020/21 planned audits will include as a theme, where appropriate, a 
review of arrangements for and consideration of the impact the service has 
on climate change and the environment.

 A review of key control areas (major systems) which are key internal 
control systems and are specifically defined as being those that control the 
Council’s collection and paymaster functions and the associated corporate 
accounting arrangements are reviewed biennially and require a resource 
of 125 days. 

 10 days has been included to carry out the annual review of Housing 
Developments which the Head of Internal Audit has assessed as 
appropriate given the scale of housing projects the Council is and will be 
delivering. 10 days will be included annually for the foreseeable future but 
will kept under review to determine if additional audit days are required. 

 A total of 22 days has been included in the Plan for Corporate Governance 
reviews which includes input in to the Annual Governance Statement, 
Business Continuity Planning, Local Government Transparency Agenda, 
Partnership Arrangements and the Quality Assessment and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) for Internal Audit.  

 The IT element of the Plan has been assessed and from 2020/21 will be 
resourced internally. Where appropriate, reliance will be placed on the 
work of external consultants to avoid any duplication of efforts.  

 10 days has been made available for councillors to request a review 
during the year which is high risk and is not covered elsewhere in the plan. 
Agreement of the Chair of Audit & Resources Committee will be sought 
prior to any review commencing.

 15 days is included in the plan for consultancy and value for money 
reviews which will determined through the year as a result of corporate 
performance monitoring. Internal Audit will work closely with Performance 
and Governance to align work, avoid duplication and improve processes. 

 A contingency of 20 days is included within the Plan to cover special 
investigations and other Counter Fraud arrangements not specifically 
provided for.  Investigations into potentially fraudulent activities will always 
be undertaken as a matter of priority.  

 20 days has also been included within the Plan to cover the transition of 
work between 2019/20 and 2020/21 and a provision of 20 days has also 
been made for demand-led activity (Help & Advice). Past experience has 
indicated that these contingencies are likely to be fully utilised.

16. In developing the Plan it must also be recognised that Internal Audit are 
integral to the review of systems, processes and procedures that are being 
undertaken and whilst the Standards are specific in identifying the 
requirements of the planning process, there is also a need to maintain 
flexibility within the Plan. Both the Plan and the associated risk assessment 

54



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

5

will be kept under regular review and updated as the results of audit work are 
finalised, new systems are developed and other factors arise which may 
affect organisational priorities. As a result, the Plan will remain fluid and some 
work may be accelerated, and other work may attract a lower priority.

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
17.Based on the above principles, the risk factor, consideration of current and 

new initiatives during the forthcoming year and liaison with key stakeholders, 
the Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 is shown in the table below. 

18.This Plan is endorsed by the Corporate Director Support Services (Chief 
Financial Officer) and the Head of Internal Audit as being sound, robust and 
sufficient to safeguard the Council’s internal control framework and sufficient 
to enable the Head of Internal Audit to produce an Annual Assurance 
Statement. 

2019/20
Agreed days

2020/21
PLANNED 

DAYS
MAJOR SYSTEMS 94 125
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 29 22
CORPORATE SUPPORT 81 91
CORPORATE SYSTEMS 37 40
STRATEGY 18 75
SUPPORT SERVICES 56 78
SERVICE DELIVERY 100 110
CONTRACT AUDIT 5 5
MEMBERS SCRUTINY 10 10
INVESTIGATIONS/ 
CONTINGENCY/ COUNTER 
FRAUD

20 20

CONSULTANCY 15 15
PRIOR YEAR END COMPLETION 15 20
HELP & ADVICE 20 20
TOTAL DAYS 500* 631

RESOURCES AVAILABLE 500* 631

Shortfall in resources 0 0

*Reduction in resource due to the Senior Internal Auditor and Internal Audit 
Apprentice posts not commencing until July & October 2019 respectively

19.The Annual Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the 
Head of Internal Audit can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit 
resources to provide a clear statement of assurance on risk management, 
internal control and governance arrangements. Detailed below is the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. 

55



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

6

 

Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21

AUDIT UNIVERSE

RISK INDEX
H=High

M=Medium
L=Low 

(see appendix 1)

2020/21
PLANNED AUDIT DAYS

Major Financial Systems
Accounting System H
Accounting for Fixed Assets H
Budgetary control H 15
Treasury Management H 15
Cash Collection & Banking H 20
Bank Reconciliation H
Accounts Receivable (Debtors) H
Accounts Payable (Creditors) H 20
Payroll H 20
Local Taxation H
Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support H 25
Contingency - 10
Sub total 125
Corporate Governance
Annual Governance Statement - 2
Internal review of Audit - 3
External review of Audit -
Follow up of Audit Recommendations 10
Corporate Governance H 5
Business Continuity Planning H
Local Government Transparency Agenda - 2
Sub total 22
Corporate Support
Audit Liaison - 8
Prevention of Fraud & Corruption - 50
National Fraud Initiative - 15
IT System Development/Implementation - 10
Corporate Risk Management Group - 2
Procurement Executive Group - 2
ICT Security Group - 2
Other Programme Boards/Project Groups - 2
Sub total 91
Corporate Systems 
Housing Development (Transactions) H 10
Community Investment Programme H 10
Insurance – Management & Administration H 10
Taxation – VAT & Sub Contractors H 5
Safeguarding – Children and Vulnerable H

56



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

7

Adults 
Health & Safety (inc Events 
Management/CDM)

H

Contract & Partnership Management H
Commercialisation M
Authorised Signatories M
Car Club L 5
Controlled Stationery L
Sub total 40
Strategy Directorate 
Strategic Planning H 10
Procurement Arrangements H 10
Risk Management H 10
Climate & Environmental Strategy H 10
Project Management/PIR Controls H
Corporate Performance Management M 10
Social Media Policy M
Community Grants M
Community Safety M
Employee Performance Management M 10
Customer Complaints & Compliments M 10
Marketing M
Community Engagement M 5
Election Expenses M
Electoral Registration M
Markets L
Sponsorship (all) & Advertising Income L
Communications & Civic/Mayoralty L
Sub total 75
Support Services Directorate 
Asset Management H
Asset Maintenance H 10
Commercial Rents H
Facilities Management H 10
Information Legislation (Data 
Protection/FOI)

M

Records and Information Management M
Management Agreements M 10
Business Applications M 10

ICT Service Delivery & Management M 5
IT Infrastructure M 5
Corporate Credit Card M 5
Travel, subsistence, officer expenses M
Legal Fees M
Recruitment & Selection M 10
Time & Attendance System M
Training & Development M

57



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

8

Sickness Absence Monitoring M
Case Management – Support Services M
Grant Funding (inwards) M 5
Car & Travel Loans L 5
Members Allowances L
Cheque security & control L
Print Unit (Glass Box) L 
Allotments L
Petty Cash L 3
Sub Total 78
Service Delivery Directorate 
Developers’ Contributions H 10
Fleet Management H 10
Enforcement H 10
Commercial Waste M
Waste Management M
Green Waste System M
Street Scene M 5
Pest Control M
Small works M 5
Tree Stock Management M
Vehicle Workshop M
The Point & The Berry (Business & 
Operations) 

M

Arts Development (inc Youth Theatre) M
Wessex House M
Countryside Land Management (all parks) M 10
Country Parks Operations M 10
Case Management M 10
Car Parks M 10
Residents Permits M
Civil Parking Enforcement M
Health Licences (inc Private Rented 
Accommodation) 

M 10

Hampshire Home Choice M
Homelessness M 5
Tenancy Start Up /Top Up Rent M
Housing Grants & DFGs M
Planning Fees M
Land Charges M
Building Control Fees M 10
Licensing – SCC Partnership M
Hire of Community Facilities M
Traffic Management M
Healthworks L 5
Cemeteries L
Sub total 110
Contract Audit - 5

58



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

9

Members Scrutiny - 10
Consultancy/Improvement (VFM) - 15
Investigations/Contingency - 20
Prior Year Audit Completion - 20
Help and Advice - 20
Total Audit days 631

59



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

10

Appendix 1

Internal Audit - Risk Based Strategy 2020/21

The Audit Universe details the main auditable areas across Eastleigh Borough Council. The 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 (PSIAS 2013) require the Head of Internal Audit 
(HIA) to establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, 
consistent with the organisation’s goals. 

“The HIA is responsible for developing a risk-based plan. The HIA takes into account the 
organisation’s risk management framework, including using risk appetite levels set by 
management for the different activities or parts of the organisation. If a framework does not 
exist, the HIA uses their own judgement of the risks after consideration or input from senior 
management and the Audit & Resources Committee. The HIA must review and adjust the 
plan, as necessary, in response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, 
programmes, systems and controls.” Source PSIAS 2017. 

Each year the Head of Internal Audit carries out a Risk Assessment of each auditable area 
which assists in determining the audit coverage for that coming year. This is considered 
alongside input from senior managers, the Audit & Resources Committee and External 
Audit.

The risk assessment is split into 4 areas; Corporate Priority, Control Environment 
assessment, financial risk score and Reputational risk score. This is determined by the Head 
of Internal Audit’s assessment with input from responsible officers, Audit & Resources 
Committee and External Audit alongside a review of Risk Registers.

Corporate Priority Score Control Environment Score
High
Medium
Low

3
2
1

Poor
Average
Good

3
2
1

Financial Risk Score Reputational Risk Score
High
Medium
Low

3
2
1

High
Medium
Low

3
2
1

Each audit is risked assessed using the 4 areas above and the score is combined to give an 
overall score. This score will determine if the audit is risked as high, medium or low as 
shown below:

Overall score:

Score Risk Audit frequency
5 or less Low risk Audit on a non-cyclical basis based on a continued 

assessment of risk
Score 6-8 Medium risk audit on a cyclical basis every 3-5 years
Score 9+ High risk audit in alternate years (biennially)

60



Eastleigh Borough Council Audit Plan 2020/21

11

Appendix 2
Internal Audit – Assurance Methodology

Opinion
1. For each internal audit assignment, we arrive at a conclusion that assesses the 

audit assurance in one of four categories. These will arise from:
 Our assessment of the controls that are in place and;
 Our assessment of compliance with these controls.

Level Control Assessment Compliance Assessment
Substantial There are robust controls in 

place. 
There is compliance with 
controls.

Adequate There are opportunities to 
improve controls. 

There is non-compliance with 
some of the controls.

Limited Significant weaknesses in 
controls exist.

There is a significant level of 
non-compliance with controls.

Nil There are no controls in place. There is no compliance with 
controls.

2. Audit objectives are established for each assignment. Each objective is 
assessed, and the results are used to form an overall opinion. 

Recommendations
3. Recommendations are graded according to the potential inherent risk 

presented. This is the risk prior to any mitigation and is designed to assist 
management with prioritising implementation as follows:

Priority Explanation

1
(Critical risk)

Significant control weaknesses which require immediate 
action.  For example, a breach of law.

2
(High risk)

There is a key control missing, not working or being 
adhered to. This could lead to a risk of material 
inaccuracy/loss. 

3
(Medium Risk)

There is a key control missing, not working or being 
adhered to. This could lead to a risk of material 
inaccuracy/loss. 

4
(Low Risk)

There is a weakness or opportunity for improvement 
although this does not expose the Council to any significant 
risk.

61



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN: March 2020 to June 2020

This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken.

A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to:

(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 
larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or

(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 
Borough of Eastleigh.

The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework.

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

19 March 2020

Yes Asset Management Strategy Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider the Council’s 
proposed Asset 
Management Strategy which 
considers the Council’s 
approach to managing 
property assets.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

63

A
genda Item

 11



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

2

Yes Nitrate Neutrality Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

This is the Borough Council’s 
short to medium term 
strategy to deliver nitrate 
neutrality for future 
development proposals. The 
Action Plan will set out 
options on how to mitigate 
increased nitrates as a result 
of additional housing 
development. 

Andy Grandfield, 
Senior Planning 
Officer / 

Yes Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval 

Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP).

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

21 May 2020

64



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

3

Yes Private Sector Housing 
Enforcement Policy 

Cabinet  21 May 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

The Public Sector Housing 
(PSH) enforcement policy 
outlines the legislative 
grounds, powers and 
enforcement options 
available to the Council with 
which officers deliver the 
Council’s statutory duty to 
keep housing conditions 
within the district under 
review and take appropriate 
action where identified to 
ensure adequate standards 
and safety are maintained. 
This policy consolidates a 
number of previous policies 
into one, expands and 
clarifies some previous 
points of enforcement as well 
as outlines the new 
enforcement options of 
housing civil penalties, rent 
repayment orders & banning 
orders now available through 
recent legislation changes 
and additions and the 
Council’s approach to their 
use. 

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) / 

65



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

4

Yes Appointments to Outside Bodies Cabinet  21 May 2020  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the appointments to 
Outside Bodies.

Laura Johnston / 

Yes Appointments to the 
Procurement Executive Group 
(PEG) 

Cabinet  21 May 2020  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the appointments to 
the Procurement Executive 
Group (PEG).

Laura Johnston / 

Yes Appointments to the Strategic 
Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) 

Cabinet  21 May 2020  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the appointments to 
the Strategic Risk 
Management Group 
(SRMG).

Laura Johnston / 

Yes Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval 

Cabinet  21 May 2020  To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP).

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  21 May 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

25 June 2020

Yes Members Allowances - Actual 
Amounts Paid 2019/20 

Cabinet  25 Jun 2020  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the report 
containing details of the 
actual amounts paid to 
Members in regards to 
allowances and expenses in 
2019/20.

Laura Johnston / 

66



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

5

Yes Provisional Outturn 2019/20 Cabinet  25 Jun 2020  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the report 
containing details of the 
provisional outturn for 
2019/20.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes Corporate Performance and 
Financial Monitoring 

Cabinet  25 Jun 2020  To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  25 Jun 2020  To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Projects (CIP).

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  25 Jun 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

FOOTNOTES:
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken.
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting.

Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Lead Specialist – Democratic Services
Publication Date: 03 March 2020

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME

AS AT MARCH 2020

Date of 
Meeting

Item for Consideration Annual or 
Standing 
item

Staff/Member 
Attendance

11/02/2020 Staffing Issues (HR/UNISON) C Granville
External Audit Plan 2019/20 EY
Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3)

J Cassar

Arts and Culture Report N Moore
Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Forward Plan

10/03/2020 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Internal Audit Charter 2020/21 J Cassar
Three year Internal Audit Strategic 
Plan 2020-2023 and Annual Audit 
Plan 2020/21

J Cassar

Counter Fraud Report J Cassar
Asset Management Strategy Annual L Suatt/S King

18/06/2020 External Audit Progress S King
Verbal updates from SRMG/PEG/ 
Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Provisional Outturn Report S King
Forward Plan

27/07/2020 Health and Safety Annual Report H Smith
Verbal updates from SRMG/PEG All Mtgs Members
Forward Plan 
Annual Statement of Accounts 
2018/19 and Annual Governance 
Report 

A Smith

Internal Audit Annual Report & 
Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr 
4)

J Cassar

Internal  Audit Charter 2020/21 J Cassar
Verbal updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Forward Plan

08/09/2020 Internal Audit  Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 1)

J Cassar

Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Forward Plan

69

Agenda Item 12



20/10/2020 Audit Results for year 31/03/2020 EY
Corporate Risk Annual Report & 
Policy

D Bright

Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs

Quarterly Performance and Finance 
Monitoring

A Smith

Forward Plan
Medium Term Financial Plan Sarah King
Repair and Renewal of Assets Plan N Stephens

26/11/2020 Annual Audit Letter
Appointment of External Auditor EY
Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Forward Plan

01/12/2020 Internal Audit  Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 2)

J Cassar

Asset Management Strategy Annual L Suatt/
Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Forward Plan

12/01/2021 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 2)

J Cassar

Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

Members

Forward Plan

09/02/2021 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3)

J Cassar

Staffing Issues (HR/UNISON) Head of HR
Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Forward Plan

09/03/2021 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group

All Mtgs Members

Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 J Cassar
Three year Internal Audit Strategic 
Plan 2020-2023 and Annual Audit 
Plan 2021/22

J Cassar

Counter Fraud Report J Cassar

70



Document is Restricted

71

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Asset Management Strategy
	Asset Management Strategy Appendix 1
	Asset Management Strategy Appendix 2
	Asset Management Strategy Appendix 3

	7 Internal Audit Charter 2020/21
	Internal Audit Charter 2019-20 Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Charter Appendix 2

	8 Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
	Strategic Audit Plan 2020-21 Appendix 1

	11 Cabinet Forward Plan
	12 A&R Work Programme
	14 Counter Fraud Report
	Counter Fraud Appendix 1


